





























Thank you.

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

Completed Oct 24 2021

Instructions

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools

For the 2020-2021 school year, any academic or
organization goals that cannot be evaluated due to school
closure resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing,
surveying, and other usual practices should be reported as
“N/A”. Deadline is November 1, 2021.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is
marked optional for administrative purposes only.

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Board of Regents-authorized and NYCDOE-authorized charter schools only.

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved
charter, and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all

goals no later than November 2, 2021.
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1b. Current Board Member Information

Trustee  Trustee  Position
Name Email on the
Address Board

10 Louise - Trustee/
Vella Member

i Joseph - Trustee/
Searles Member

12

13

14

15

Commit Voting Number
tee Member
Affiliatio Per By-  Served
ns Laws
(Y/N)
Governa
Yes i}
nce
Finance Yes 1

1c. Are there more than 15 members of the Board of Trustees?

No

23 /38

Start

of Terms Date of

Current
Term
(MM/DD
YYYY)

12/1/20
18

11/6/20
18

End
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD
YYYY)

2/1/202
2

1/26/20
21

Board
Meeting
S
Attende
d
During
2020-
2021

10

5 or less


















special educator, counselor, and  and how his/her needs are being
parent/caregiver in order to met.
ensure the parent receives

frequent positive feedback on

growth and is also aware of

challenges. These actions built

trust and a sense of teamwork

within a community all for the

benefit of the student. As a

result, the majority of students

with IEPs will return to AHS.

Those who will not fall into the

following categories 1) out of

state or out of district move 2) in

need of increased level of

service.

Entry 10 - Teacher and Administrator Attrition

Completed Oct 24 2021

Form for "Entry 10 - Teacher and Administrator
Attrition" Revised to Employee Fingerprint
Requirements Attestation
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CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides.

FTE Count

Total Category F 16

Thank you.

Entry 12 Organization Chart

Completed Oct 24 2021
Instructions
R ir f R nts, NYCDOE, and B lo BOE Authoriz harter Schools ONLY

Upload the 2020-2021 Organization Chart. The organization chart should include position titles and
reporting relationships. Employee names should not appear on the chart

En 12 Org ch 2020-21

Filename: Entry 12 Org chart 2020 21.pdf Size: 83.0 kB

Entry 13 School Calendar

Completed Oct 24 2021

Instructions for submitting School Calendar

Required of ALL Charter Schools

Given these uncertain and changing times, charter schools may or may not have a school calendar ready
to upload by the submission deadline this year of August 2, 2021. If the charter school has a tentative

calendar based on available information and guidance at the time, please submit with the August 2nd
submission. Charter schools will be able to upload an updated school calendar into the portal at any time
but no later than September 15, 2021.

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools
“... unless the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.”

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools are required to submit school calendars that clearly indicate
the start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or
instructional days for each month.

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes
only.
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Master Calendars SY2122

Filename: Master Calendars SY2122.xlsx General .pdf Size: 31.9 kB

Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on School Website

Completed Oct 24 2021

Instructions

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website.
Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items:

1.

»

IR

N

© ®

Most recently filed Annual Report (i.e., 2019-2020 Annual Report);

Most recent board meeting notice, documents to be discussed at the meeting (if any), and
webcast of Board meetings (if held virtually per Governor’s Executive Order);

Link to New York State School Report Card;

Lottery Notice announcing date of lottery;

Authorizer-approved DASA Policy;

District-wide safety plan and Authorizer-approved Discipline Policy (as per August 29,
2019 Emergency Response Plan Memo);

Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and

Subject matter list of FOIL records.

Link to School Reopening Plan

Form for Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on
School Website

School Name: Academy of Health Sciences CS
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Requir f ALL Charter Sch noting that NY-authorized charter sch re not requir
t mit item 5: Authorizer= rov DASA i

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its

website. Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items:

Link to Documents

1. Most Recent Annual Report (i.e., 2019-20) https://ahscharter,or annual-r
2. Most recent board meeting notice, documents to

; : ) https://ahscharter,or rd-of-trust
be discussed at the meeting (if any)
2a. Webcast of Board Meetings (per Governor's

. gs (p https://ahscharter,or rd-of-trust

Executive Order)
3. Link to NYS School Report Card https://ahscharter,or nnual-r

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1lhogn7w36uuH|MHI

4. Lottery Notice announcing date of lotte
i g i iiVk2flwPOCatXd5/view?usp=sharin

5. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy (For Regents,
NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter https://ahscharter.org/families/dasa/
Schools ONLY);

6. District-wide Safety Plan https://ahscharter,or hool-polici

6a. Authorizer-Approved Discipline Policy (as per

https://ahscharter.org/families
August 29, 2019 Emergency Response Plan Memo)

7. Authorizer-Approved FOIL Policy https://ahscharter,org/cont

8. Subject matter list of FOIL records https://ahscharter,or nt

Thank you.

Entry 15 Staff Roster

Completed Jan 17 2022
INSTRUCTIONS
Requir f Regents-Authoriz h r School LY

Please click on the MS Excel ff R« r Template and provide the following information for ANY and
ALL instructional and non-instructional employees.
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*Full name for any and all employees

*TEACH IDs for any and all employees

*Using the drop down menu, select a role/position (or the best fit) for each employee in the charter
school. (Please provide additional information to the Notes Section of the Staff Roster Template as
necessary)

*Date of hire and employment start dates

*Number of years each employee has had in their respective professions

*Number of years each employee has had in their current role in the charter school

*Using the drop down menu, select the correct explanation as to why a teacher is teaching outside of
their certification area.

Final revised staff roster SY2021

Filename: Final revised staff roster SY2021.xlsx Size: 45.6 kB
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ACADEMY OF HEALTH SCIENCES
COMPOSITE MINUTES
2020-2021

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
July 27, 2020, 5:30 pm
Meeting held via Zoom

Attendance
A quorum of 8 trustees out of 11 total trustees was present as follows.
Board members present: Warren Hern, Michele Lawrence, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer,

Louise Vella, Robert Hoggard, Erika Dooley
Board members absent: Bradley Turner, Joseph Searles, Kevin Overton
Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler

. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:33 pm.

Il.  Approval of Minutes

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the June 27, 2020 meeting.
MOTION CARRIED
® Move: Louise Vella
e Second: Mario Urso
e Aye: Warren Hern, Michele Lawrence, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Louise
Vella, Robert Hoggard
e Nay: none

Because Robert Hoggard’s Board membership was not approved until Feb. 20, 2020, a motion
was made and seconded to amend the minutes of the Jan. 27, 2020 and Feb. 1, 2020 meeting
minute attendance to list Robert Hoggard under “Others present” rather than “Board members
present”. MOTION CARRIED

e Move: Robert Hoggard

e Second: Michele Lawrence

e Aye: Warren Hern, Michele Lawrence, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Louise

Vella, Robert Hoggard
e Nay: none

. Principal’s Report



e Enrollment: The school currently has 205 students fully enrolled for 2020-2021, out of a
maximum of 216. The staff continue recruitment activities to meet maximum
enrollment and grow the wait-list.

e Year-end data: In the school’s first year, the primary focus was on building a healthy
student and staff culture. In the second year, the school plans to continue to build on
other key design elements. Wanda reported year-end data in the following categories.
In addition, Wanda noted that the school will work on improving quality and
transparency for the Board using new data systems in 2020-2021. Finally, Wanda
described how the school is already making changes in regard to parent communication,
data systems, teacher coaching, and other areas based on this data.

o Enrollment: The school retained 91% of students throughout the year, and 87%
of students over the summer into 2020-2021. Some of the primary reasons for
student attrition include: students moving out of the area, joining siblings at
another school, or choosing to attend a school that extends through 12th grade.

O Attendance: Prior to the building closure, the school had an average daily
attendance of 92%. The school has a process for working with families in cases
of chronic absenteeism, and a clear policy for both remote and in-person
attendance for the upcoming school year.

O Academic achievement: Due to the virtual learning environment at the end of
the school year, there were some challenges in obtaining complete, accurate
data. In addition, the state assessment was cancelled this year, so there is no
data available for this assessment. In ELA, the school attained its goal for
students reading on grade-level in the IRLA assessment, and will assess its two-
year growth goal on the NWEA MAP next year. In math, the school will assess its
two-year growth goal on the NWEA MAP next year.

O School culture: The school administered end-of-year student surveys, but the
results were likely influenced by the virtual learning environment. The baseline
results suggest a strong first year with areas for improvement. There was a
strong response rate on the end-of-year parent survey. The school anticipates
that the Parent Academy will improve parent engagement and empowerment in
2020-2021. The school met all of its staff culture goals, and will now work on
incorporating new staff into the staff culture already established.

O Teacher performance: The school met its teacher performance goals. The goal
for next year is to make the evaluation process more robust and focus on
progress monitoring.

Reopening Plans

Wanda noted that over 130 families had responded to a survey asking about their questions,
concerns, and preferences for school reopening. Based on this data, the school prepared a plan
that provides parents the flexibility to choose between in-person, remote, and hybrid learning.
The plan balances consideration of risk, value of parent choice, and evidence of what works best



VI.

VIL.

VIII.

for student learning. The school hopes that as the risk of infection continues to decline, more
parents will opt for in-person learning over time.

For families that choose remote or hybrid learning, students learning from home will be
engaged in synchronous learning. The goal is to provide something comparable to an in-person
experience, in order to improve engagement and learning. The remote attendance policy will be
as rigorous as the in-person attendance policy.

In terms of communication, the school has scheduled a meeting with staff and multiple
meetings with families in early August in order to share the reopening plan and answer
questions.

A motion was made and seconded to approve the Reopening Plan. MOTION CARRIED
e Move: Michele Lawrence
e Second: Louise Vella
e Aye: Warren Hern, Michele Lawrence, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Louise
Vella, Robert Hoggard
e Nay: none

NYSED Desk Audit Report
The Board reviewed the draft report from the NYSED desk audit and Wanda shared a response
noting minor factual inaccuracies for correction.

Finance Committee

Mario reported that the school’s cash position was strong, with no significant issues with
collectability of accounts payable and little in liabilities. There was a lot of recent activity in
terms of CSP spending, as the grant period ended June 30. The school continues to track under
budget in expenses and close to budget on revenues, and Wanda added that she felt that the
educational program was not hurt by working to stay under budget. The school had a surplus at
the end of the first year. Mario reported no concerns in terms of the balance sheet or cash flow.

Mario noted that the school anticipates applying for forgiveness of the Paycheck Protection
Program loan.

Finally, Mario noted that the school is preparing for the annual audit by an independent
accounting firm, Mengel Metzger & Barr.

Executive Session

Adjournment



Attendance

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
August 31, 2020, 5:30 pm
Meeting held via Zoom

A quorum of 7 trustees out of 11 total trustees was present as follows.

Board members present: Warren Hern, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Erika Dooley, Kevin

Overton, Bradley Turner

Board members absent: Michele Lawrence, Louise Vella, Joseph Searles

Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler

I.  Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:45 pm.

Il.  Approval of Minutes

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the June 27, 2020 meeting.
MOTION CARRIED

Move: Kevin Railey

Second: Erika Dooley

Aye: Warren Hern, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Erika Dooley, Kevin Overton,
Bradley Turner

Nay: none

. Principal’s Report

Enrollment: There are currently 211 students fully enrolled, and the staff plan to
continue enrollment until maximum enrollment of 216 is reached.

Reopening: The school has already held two parent meetings to share information
about the reopening plan, and will hold three more orientation meetings this week.
Currently, slightly over 50% of families have selected remote-only learning for their
students, which ensures that the school will stay below the maximum capacity for in-
person students in each classroom. Families are able to switch their choice from remote
to in-person or hybrid, but this change may take up to two weeks to arrange in order to
allow the school to monitor the number of students attending in person; if maximum
capacity is reached, the school will assign days for each student to attend in person. This
week, parents will visit the school to pick up their child’s Chromebook and books, as well
as complete paperwork. Each remote and hybrid student will be provided with a
Chromebook, reading books, paper and pencils.

Professional development: Staff orientation has focused heavily on unit planning

structures this year, as well as ensuring that staff develop comfort with teaching via



Zoom. In addition, the school has identified three priority focus areas for the
professional learning community throughout the year: expanding health sciences
experiences; maximizing student voice; and teaching critical hope. Finally, staff are
learning how to use a new data system called Schoolrunner.

e Discipline policy/code of conduct: Wanda stated that there have been some minor

changes to the policy in order to improve processes and clarify roles and responsibilities.
These modifications were based on staff feedback from the Strategic Directions
Committee. A motion was made and seconded to approve the revised Discipline Policy
& Code of Conduct. MOTION CARRIED
o Move: Kevin Overton
O Second: Erika Dooley
O Aye: Warren Hern, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Erika Dooley, Kevin
Overton, Bradley Turner
O Nay: none
e Safety Plan: Alison presented the 2020-2021 district-wide safety plan, which has had
minor revisions since last year. A motion was made and seconded to approve the 2020-
2021 Safety Plan. MOTION CARRIED
O Move: Mario Urso
o Second: Kevin Overton
O Aye: Warren Hern, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Erika Dooley, Kevin
Overton, Bradley Turner
o Nay: none
e Board Bylaws: Alison noted that the Board bylaws require a “minimum of 10 meetings
per year,” and proposed a revision to require monthly meetings in accordance with
NYSED guidelines. A motion was made and seconded to approve the revised Board
Bylaws. MOTION CARRIED
O Move: Kevin Overton
O Second: Kevin Railey
O Aye: Warren Hern, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Erika Dooley, Kevin
Overton, Bradley Turner
O Nay: none
Finance committee
Mario stated that based on the most current information available, the school district budget
cuts that were recently announced will not affect charter schools. While Wanda and Alison have
prepared plans to implement if budget reductions are confirmed, these plans will not be
enacted preemptively.

Mario stated that in terms of financial position, the school was in a strong position as of the end
of July in terms of cash and assets. On the liabilities side, there is a small amount of accounts
payable.



On the statement of activities and budget vs. actual report, Mario stated that the school is
tracking well relative to budget. On some line items, the spending is ahead of budget simply due
to the timing of when costs were incurred; overall, however, the school is on target with the
Board-approved budget. There are no cash flow positions, but the Finance Committee is
exploring options for a line of credit.

V.  Facilities Task Force
Kevin Overton reported that the task force members are reaching out to brokers in order to
assist with identifying potential sites for a long-term location for the school.

VL. Executive Session
VILI. Adjournment
Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
Sept. 28, 2020, 5:30 pm
Meeting held via Zoom
Attendance

A quorum of 8 trustees out of 11 total trustees was present as follows.

Board members present: Warren Hern, Mario Urso, Wendy Ferrer, Erika Dooley, Kevin Overton, Michele
Lawrence, Louise Vella, Robert Hoggard

Board members absent: Joseph Searles, Kevin Railey, Bradley Turner

Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler

. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:35 pm.

Il.  Approval of Minutes

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the August 30, 2020 meeting.
MOTION CARRIED

. Principal’s Report
e Beginning-of-year updates: Wanda stated that students have completed diagnostic
testing, including a new pre-test in every subject area, and have now started content
learning. Teachers and students are adapting to changes this year such as increased use
of technology, mask requirements, etc. Students had their first virtual College & Career
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Day, and continue to have community meetings every Friday. The first parent-teacher
conferences of the year are coming up soon.
e Remote learning updates: Parents of students learning remotely are returning to pick up

materials for new units (such as new books) this week. Some parents continue to
express concerns about the safety of in-person learning, and Wanda noted concern that
there are a few families that are keeping students home to assist with care of younger
siblings or other family needs. One challenge for remote students is that some struggle
to track their own schedule, for instance failing to realize when lunch period is over and
they need to log back into class.

e Enrollment: The school is close to full enrollment and has a 6th grade wait-list.

e Attendance: Overall, average daily attendance stands at approximately 64%. Wanda
described this as a concern and a priority that the school is focused on improving, but
noted that there is no comparative attendance data from other charter schools as of
yet. The school is beginning to send attendance reports/ letters of concern to families,
and using attendance data to identify students in need of additional support or
intervention.

e Safety: The school reports coronavirus data daily for the state school data dashboard. So
far, the school has sent home two students with potential symptoms, and they must
submit appropriate documentation to return in person. In-person students have their
temperatures checked daily and complete health screening questionnaires weekly. In
addition, the school maintains a maximum of 50% capacity in classrooms to ensure
social distancing; students stay in cohorts throughout the day and do not switch
classrooms; and students and staff wear masks.

Finance Committee

Mario described the school as having very good financial results for the first two months of the
year, having ended August with a strong cash position and strong equity position. He noted that
there is nothing unusual on the expense side. There are no concerns about collectability of
tuition payments including the balance of the 2019-2020 CSP grant and Title funds, and no
indications of imminent budget cuts impacting charter schools. The school plans to apply for full
forgiveness of its PPP loan.

Facilities Task Force

Kevin Overton stated that in regard to finding a new school site following the expiration of the
current lease, the task force has contacted two brokerage companies. The task force will
determine which company to work with in order to help find a new location.

Adjournment
Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:30 pm.



Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
Oct. 27, 2020, 5:30 pm
Meeting held via Zoom

Public Notice: notice and Zoom link provided from Sept. 29 to Oct. 27, 2020 at
https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees/

Attendance

A quorum of 10 trustees out of 11 total trustees was present as follows.

Board members present: Warren Hern, Michele Lawrence, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Louise Vella, Erika

Dooley, Wendy Ferrer, Kevin Overton, Bradley Turner, Robert Hoggard

Board members absent: Joseph Searles

Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler, Sarah Vistocco

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:36 pm.

Approval of Minutes

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the Sept. 28, 2020 meeting.
MOTION CARRIED

Finance Committee Report

Mario Urso reported that the school is in a very strong financial position, with no concerns
related to the balance sheet. He noted small amounts of receivables, with no anticipated issues
in collecting them, and little in the way of current liabilities. The school has applied for
forgiveness of the PPP loan. Finally, Mario noted that at monthly Finance Committee meetings
prior to full Board meetings, the committee reviews all monthly financial reports in great detail
and asks multiple questions of AHS staff in order to bring any significant concerns to the full
Board.

Mario noted that the audit for the year ending June 30, 2020 was complete. The auditors were
complimentary, and had no findings of material weaknesses and no adjustments made to the
financial statements. A motion was made and seconded to accept the auditors’ reports.
MOTION CARRIED


https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees

Move: Mario Urso
Second: Michele Lawrence
Aye: All

Nay: none

Mario noted that Alison Tyler and the Finance Committee had made minor revisions to the
Fiscal Policies & Procedures Manual in order to better reflect a proper internal control
environment. The specific changes were: stating the roles of two people in processing electronic
transfers; stating the Principal’s role in reviewing credit card purchases; and clarifying
organization of documents in personnel files. A motion was made and seconded to approve the
proposed revisions to the Fiscal Policies & Procedures Manual. MOTION CARRIED

® Move: Mario Urso
e Second: Kevin Railey
e Aye: All

e Nay: none

Mario stated that per an earlier Board approval, the school had sought out a line of credit as a
safety cushion to be used if needed, although they did not anticipate any cash flow issues. The
bank instead offered a loan. Mario presented a resolution to allow the school to proceed with
the loan application and agreement, noting that Alison Tyler would communicate with the
Finance Committee if the school ever saw a need to draw on the loan. A motion was made and
seconded to approve Resolution #AHS-5 for the approval of a loan. MOTION CARRIED

e Move: Mario Urso

® Second: Kevin Railey
e Aye: All

e Nay: none

Facilities Task Force

Kevin Overton stated that the task force decided to engage a broker to assist with finding and
securing a new location for the school. Due to the school’s unique needs, the task force pursued
two specific brokers and requested proposals for tenant representation services. Only one was
responsive to the request, and therefore the task force recommends moving forward with CBRE.
Kevin explained the proposal and the task force’s proposed revisions, namely: to carve out an
exception for the school’s current location and another previously identified location; to request
reduction of the commission rate; and to request a shorter tail. A motion was made and
seconded to approve the tenant representation agreement as-is or with proposed revisions.
MOTION CARRIED

e Move: Michele Lawrence
e Second: Louise Vella
o Aye:

e Nay: none

Report from AHS Teacher



VI.

Wanda Perez-Brundage introduced Sarah Vistocco, a second-year ELA Teacher. Sarah described
how synchronous learning works in her classroom, and how she engages both remote and in-
person students the same way with the same expectations for rigor. For example, she projects
the faces of remote students onto the board for in-person students to see and engage with, and
has in-person students approach her laptop and speak into the microphone when answering
guestions so that remote students can see and hear their responses. In addition, Sarah
described how she incorporates the school’s identified priorities (“Big Rocks”) such as
maximizing student voice into her daily work.

Principal’s Report

Enrollment: There are 204 students fully enrolled. There are some outstanding offers and some
students who have recently accepted an offer but not yet enrolled.

COVID-19 Safety: Wanda stated that the school has a good routine for temperature checks and

health screenings; as a result, the school has typically sent home one to three students per week
with potential symptoms, but no students or staff have had a confirmed case of COVID-19 yet.
Parents have been understanding, and students with mild symptoms are able to learn remotely
while awaiting a doctor’s visit or test result. School staff continue to strictly enforce mask
requirements. One update to the school’s procedures is that enrichment teachers now rotate
between classrooms; however, students continue to stay in one classroom throughout the day,
with the exception of P.E. class in the gym.

Parent Engagement: The teachers just finished the first round of parent-teacher conferences.

Approximately 85% of parents attended a conference, and staff continue to follow up to try to
get 100% of parents to attend. There is a virtual Empowerment Meeting for all families next
week.

Attendance: First, Wanda noted that due to the pandemic, each school in the state has been
instructed to develop its own attendance policy for this school year; AHS has set a very rigorous
attendance policy, which was written to hold remote students to a high standard. The school
gave grace at the beginning of the year in response to students having technology challenges at
home, but we have been providing hotspots, technology tutorials, and other supports to ensure
that remote students are able to access lessons and participate. Currently, the average daily
attendance rate is a little over 50%. Wanda discussed the process of working closely with
families to improve attendance. One major goal of the recent parent-teacher conferences was
to communicate about attendance policy and each student’s attendance record so far.

NWEA Baseline Results: Wanda noted that it continues to be challenging to ensure that all

students, including remote students, participate in all assessments. There was evidence of
growth on the NWEA assessment last year from fall to spring, although with some dip from
winter to spring due to some learning lost during school closure. The percentage of students
meeting the NWEA goals was lower this fall than in the spring, because of a new cohort of
incoming students. These are baseline results and staff are aiming for significant growth. Wanda
noted that there are still questions about whether or how schools will be held to pre-pandemic
standards in terms of state accountability.



VIL.

Adjournment
Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:06 pm.

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
Nov. 23, 2020, 5:30 pm
Meeting held via Zoom

Public Notice: notice and Zoom link provided from Oct. 28 - Nov. 23, 2020 at
https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees/

Attendance
A quorum of 11 16-trustees out of 11 total trustees was present as follows.

Board members present: Warren Hern, Michele Lawrence, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Louise Vella, Erika

Dooley, Wendy Ferrer, Kevin Overton, Bradley Turner, Robert Hoggard, Joseph Searles

Board members absent: (none)

Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler, Dennis Robillard

Approval of Minutes

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the Oct. 27, 2020 meeting.
MOTION CARRIED

e Move: Kevin Railey

e Second: Kevin Overton

e Aye:All

e Nay: None

Principal’s Report
e COVID-19 updates: Wanda confirmed that the school is located in the area designated

as an orange zone earlier today, which takes effect on Nov. 26. Under orange zone
guidelines, schools are required to close for a minimum of 4 days with the option to
reopen with mass testing. Wanda explained that the school would be closed on Nov.
24in order to allow staff to prepare to transition to remote learning and allow parents to
pick up remote learning materials from the school. The school will follow up with
families that have not picked up remote learning materials, or distribute materials to
students’ homes if they do not have transportation. Going forward, Wanda


https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees

recommended that the school provide only remote instruction through at least winter
break, based on significant concern about the expected rise in community spread of
COVID-19 after Thanksgiving as well as other factors including: staff responses to a
survey, the low number of families that consented to on-site testing for yellow zone
purposes, and the limited number of days between Thanksgiving and winter break to
complete testing. Remaining in remote-only mode would allow the school additional
time to arrange logistics of mass testing, such as obtaining a limited services laboratory
certification, getting consent from more students, etc. The exact date for return to in-
person instruction will be determined based on feedback from families and guidance
from the state and county. Board members voiced support of this recommendation.

e Data review: Wanda noted that on-time attendance continues to be a concern. The
attendance team meets biweekly, and each member has a caseload of students to
triage. Unfortunately, due to the pandemic, there is no way to compare attendance
rates across schools right now because there is no uniform standard for measuring
attendance. In terms of academic assessment data, Wanda noted that getting all
students tested remains a challenge. On the most recent NWEA Math assessment,
students who returned to AHS from last year had the same level of achievement; but
the students who were new to AHS this year had a slightly lower baseline level of
achievement than last year’s new cohort. On the NWEA ELA assessment, students
returning to AHS from last year bounced back to their prior level of achievement last
year; overall, students had higher performance in ELA than in math. In terms of
standards mastery, the majority of students have mastered fewer than 10% of
standards for the year in both ELA and math.

Report from AHS Staff

Wanda introduced Dennis Robillard, Data Specialist. Dennis described his roles in operations and
academics, and named some of the technology and data challenges faced during the pandemic.
Wanda discussed how school leadership works on strengthening the school’s data culture,
including teachers’ mindsets and data transparency.

Proposed Revisions to Academic Goals in School Charter

Wanda explained the proposed changes to clarify ambiguous language in one goal and to
update the assessment in another. She stated that the proposed revisions do not alter the rigor
of the goals. A motion was made and seconded to approve the proposed revisions. MOTION
CARRIED

® Move: Joseph Searles
e Second: Louise Vella
e Aye: All

e Nay: None



V. Facilities Task Force report
Kevin Overton stated that the school has officially signed with CBRE as the tenant representative
to assist the school with efforts to locate a new facility.

VL. Finance Committee Report
Mario stated that the school was in a strong position as of the end of October with a strong cash
position, strong asset position, little in the way of liabilities, a small amount of accounts payable,
and no anticipated collection issues in accounts receivable. The school’s Paycheck Protection
Program loan has been fully forgiven.

He also described the school’s spending as favorable to the expense budget in most categories,
with the exception of salaries where the school hired staff members with high levels of
experience than originally anticipated. The committee reviews such updates to the forecast
monthly.

Overall, he stated that there were no concerns to raise to the Board.

VIl.  Adjournment
Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:08 pm.

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
Dec. 21, 2020, 5:30 pm
Meeting held via Zoom video conference

Public Notice: notice and Zoom link provided from Nov. 24 - Dec. 21, 2020 at
https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees/

Attendance
A quorum of 9 trustees out of 11 total trustees was present as follows.
Board members present: Warren Hern, Michele Lawrence, Mario Urso, Kevin Railey, Louise Vella, Erika

Dooley, Wendy Ferrer, Kevin Overton, Robert Hoggard
Board members absent: Joseph Searles (excused), Bradley Turner (excused)
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Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler, Joyce Akwaa, Jonathan Sharp

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:31 PM.

Approval of Minutes

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the Nov. 23, 2020 meeting.
MOTION CARRIED

® Move: Louise Vella

e Second: Kevin Railey

e Aye: All

e Nay: None

Principal’s report
Events this week: Parents are visiting the building to pick up a free mascot t-shirt for completing

a recent parent-teacher conference and a gift card as a holiday gift from the Board of Trustees.

Professional development: Wanda described the overall program of professional development

for instructional staff. New staff started professional development in the first week of August,
then all staff completed three weeks of professional development together prior to the first day
of school. During the school year, teachers participate in coaching and team meetings
throughout the week, and professional development on Friday afternoons after early dismissal.
Professional development topics so far this year have included distance and synchronous
learning, culture of collective efficacy, data-driven instruction, diversity, and subject-specific
topics. In the last two weeks, the professional development has focused on think-alouds and
checks for understanding, and teachers have filmed themselves using these instructional
strategies for analysis later. A teacher recently led a critical friends group about students
discussing their own data. In addition, professional development time is sometimes used to
prepare for testing, parent conferences, and other events; as well as for planning and coaching
conversations. Wanda described how she has adapted live coaching for remote teaching.

Enrollment: The school currently has 200 students enrolled, and is now accepting applications
for the 2021-22 school year.

Coronavirus Safety: The Finger Lakes 14-day rolling average is 8.2%, significantly above the 5%

virtual-only threshold set in the school’s reopening plan. The school has submitted an
application for our limited services laboratory certification so that we will be prepared to
conduct required on-site testing when open in person. However, the school has not committed
to a firm reopening date yet because there is likely to be a spike in cases after winter break.
There has been no specific information about the process for vaccinating school staff.

Microscope Minute



VL.

VIL.

VIIL.

Jon Sharp is a second-year Dean of Students at AHS, and Joyce Akwaa is a first-year Dean of
Students. They summarized their roles as helping to make sure that students are engaged,
holding them accountable, having conversations with parents, serving on the attendance team,
running school store, and maintaining behavior data in Schoolrunner. The most common
student behavior issues are off-task behaviors (such as conversations with peers or not staying
on camera during remote learning). During remote learning, they try to keep virtual learning as
similar to in-person learning as possible, but have spent more time troubleshooting issues with
technology and attendance. Both Deans are also working with outside organizations to provide
tutoring, and to establish after-school mentoring and athletics programs next year.

Facilities Task Force

Kevin Overton stated that CBRE is actively searching for properties. In addition, the school

recently had a conversation with a charter school developer who may be able to help plan

renovations and provide financing through bonds for facility acquisition. The task force will
explore whether they may be a good partner in the search for a longer-term facility.

Finance Committee report

Mario Urso stated that the school is in a good cash position with no concerns about cash flow.
Operationally, the school is at or near budget in most categories. The school is slightly worse
than budget in personnel expenses due to hiring teachers with more years of experience than
originally anticipated.

Retreat Planning
Warren Hern presented a draft agenda for the virtual retreat focused on the mid-charter
renewal process, and stated that a third-party facilitator has been engaged to lead discussions.

Adjournment
Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:05 PM.

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
March 22, 2021, 5:30 PM
Meeting held via Zoom video conference



Public Notice: notice and Zoom link provided from Feb. 28 - March 22, 2021 at
https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees/

Attendance

A quorum of 8 out of 10 total trustees was present as follows.

Board members present: Warren Hern, Louise Vella, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Kevin Overton, Michele

Lawrence, Bradley Turner, Robert Hoggard

Board members absent: Mario Urso (excused), Erika Dooley (excused)

Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler

I.  Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:35 PM.

Il.  Approval of Minutes

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the Feb. 27, 2021 retreat and
meeting. MOTION CARRIED

Motion: Louise Vella
Second: Kevin Railey
Aye: All

Nay: None

. Principal’s Report

Enrollment: The school staff is now focused on enrollment for next year. Recruitment
activities including targeted mailings, online events, and Facebook ads. The lottery will
be held on April 6.

Coronavirus safety: This marks the fifth week back to in-person learning since the fall.

The school has been made aware of one positive case, but there is no evidence of
spread within the school; in addition, students in quarantine but asymptomatic can still
attend remotely. Attendance continues to be a concern for several students, so the staff
sends weekly attendance reports to all parents and uses more targeted interventions for
a limited number of students of concern.

Family engagement: Another round of family conferences is coming up. Staff will meet

anytime the parent is available, including evenings. At these conferences, teachers will
inform parents of possible grade-level retentions.

Hiring: The goal is to be fully staffed by June 1. At this point, several applicants have
made it to stage 2 or 3.

Testing: The federal government has announced it will not grant any state testing
waivers, but there are waivers of accountability. AHS will administer state tests
beginning in late April. NYSED has announced extended testing windows and shortened
the number of sessions per subject area. Remote-only students are not expected to
come into the school only for testing.
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VL.

VII.

e NYSED: NYSED will conduct a remote site visit on April 15 including meetings with the
leadership team and observations of virtual classes.

Executive Session

The Board moved into executive session to discuss matters leading to the appointment,
employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular
person or corporation.

Approvals

Alison Tyler explained a required amendment to the safety plan, an appendix that outlines the
school’s continuity of operations plan in the event of a future public health emergency. A
motion was made and seconded to approve the amendment. MOTION CARRIED

e Motion: Louise Vella
e Second: Michele Lawrence
e Aye: All

e Nay: None

Wanda Perez-Brundage explained that the school proposes to temporarily amend the teacher
performance evaluation process by removing the achievement data factor. This revision will
align with the federal recommendations regarding accountability for student achievement data
during the pandemic, in order to ensure that teachers’ compensation is not unfairly influenced
by pandemic-related factors. A motion was made and seconded to approve the amendment to
the teacher performance evaluation policy. MOTION CARRIED

e Motion: Kevin Overton

e Second: Kevin Railey
e Aye:All
e Nay: None

Academic Committee Report

Kevin Railey explained that the committee has identified its goals for the next year, key
guestions, and what types of data they will monitor. He noted that the committee will discuss
issues including the possibility of an extended school year and the Response to Intervention
process.

Governance Committee Report
Louise Vella stated that the Governance Committee will have its first meeting to establish its
purpose and goals.
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Finance and Audit Committee Report

Warren Hern reported that the school was in a strong cash position at the end of February, with
no concerns about receivables. In terms of the income statement, the school is doing well with
regards to revenue. An updated forecast also shows a surplus due to increased revenue from
emergency stimulus funds.

Infrastructure Committee Report

Kevin Overton reported that the committee has identified potential locations for a future site
and have involved consultants to help us assess those sites for suitability and compliance with
NYSED regulations.

Adjournment
Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:41 p.m.

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
April 26, 2021, 5:30 PM
Meeting held via Zoom video conference

Public Notice: notice and Zoom link provided at https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees/

Attendance

A quorum of 8 out of 10 total trustees was present as follows.
Board members present: Warren Hern, Louise Vella, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Kevin Overton, Michele

Lawrence, Mario Urso, Erika Dooley
Board members absent: Bradley Turner (excused), Robert Hoggard (excused)

Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:37 PM.

Approval of Minutes

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the March 22, 2021 Board
meeting. MOTION CARRIED

e Motion: Louise Vella

e Second: Michele Lawrence

e Aye: All
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VI.

VII.

e Nay: None

Approval of 990

Mario Urso presented the school’s 2019 990 and stated that the Finance & Audit Committee
had reviewed it in detail. A motion was made and seconded to approve the 990. MOTION
CARRIED

e Motion: Mario Urso

e Second: Kevin Overton

e Aye: All

e Nay: None

Principal’s Report

e Current Events: Wanda Perez-Brundage reported that NYSED completed a virtual site
visit of the school. This week, students are participating in a virtual field experience
week with guest speakers and activities. The ELA testing window began last week, and
math testing begins next week.

e Covid updates: Wanda explained that the state had updated social distancing rules,
decreasing the distance between students to 3 feet. This allowed the school to raise the
maximum number of students allowed in each classroom. Adults and students continue
to be required to wear masks.

e Planning for next school year: Wanda stated that interviews continue with the goal of

being fully hired by June 1. The number of applications for next year has been lower
than usual because of the pandemic, and enrollment of new fifth grade students has
been a challenge. Wanda discussed the possibility of offering a remote learning option
for students in the new school year, to be finalized based on additional data.

Academic Committee

Kevin Railey and Erika Dooley reported that the committee is currently focused on
understanding the school’s benchmark assessments in detail. This will help support analysis of
professional development topics and annual performance assessment of the Principal. In
addition, the committee discussed ways to support students who are significantly below grade
level.

Governance Committee
Louise Vella presented the committee’s new statement of purpose and committee
responsibilities.

Finance & Audit Committee

Mario Urso stated that the school is in a good financial position, with no concerns about the
balance sheet. From a liability perspective, the school has typical accounts payable. Alison Tyler
stated that the school expects to see an increase in per-pupil funding in the 2021-22 school year
and some additional allocation of emergency funds.



VIIL.

Infrastructure Committee

Kevin Overton stated that the school has engaged a consultant to assess one potential property
as a long-term location, and continues work with a charter school facility developer to assess
another potential property.

Adjournment
Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:23 pm.

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
May 24, 2021, 5:30 PM
Meeting held via Zoom video conference

Public Notice: notice and Zoom link provided at https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees/

Attendance
A quorum of 9 out of 10 total trustees was present as follows.

Board members present: Warren Hern, Louise Vella, Kevin Railey, Wendy Ferrer, Kevin Overton, Michele

Lawrence, Mario Urso, Erika Dooley, Robert Hoggard

Board members absent: Bradley Turner (excused)

Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage, Alison Tyler

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:35 PM.

Approval of Minutes
A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the April 26, 2021 Board meeting.
MOTION CARRIED
e Motion: Louise Vella
e Second: Kevin Overton
e Aye: All
o Nay: None

Principal’s Report
e Enrollment: The school currently has 195 students. For 2021-2022 enrollment, staff
continue to work with families to obtain all needed documentation to fully enroll their
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students. The school is hiring additional staff for door-to-door recruitment visits during
the summer.
e Coronavirus updates: There has been no evidence of transmission within the school.

Some students continue to experience hardships due to family members who have been
sick recently. The state has not changed social distancing and masking requirements in
schools. After the state announces guidance for school safety in the fall, AHS will finalize
its plan.

e Attendance and academics: Attendance went up slightly since last month. Students are

preparing for online portfolio presentations in June. In addition, teachers will be
conducting the final round of parent-teacher conferences shortly.

e Staffing and hiring: Wanda presented the revised 2021-2022 staffing plan. The school is
in the final stages of hiring for new positions for the new school year.

IV.  Approval: 2021-2022 School Calendar
Wanda and Alison presented the proposed 2021-2022 school calendar. Compared to the
Rochester City School District, AHS will have one additional full day of school and two full days
where the city has half-days. A motion was made and seconded to approve the 2021-2022
calendar. MOTION CARRIED
e Motion: Kevin Overton

e Second: Michele Lawrence
e Aye: All
e Nay: None

V. Infrastructure Committee

Kevin Overton reported that the school leadership holds regular meetings with Highmark
regarding a potential facility available for purchase.

VI.  Finance & Audit Committee
Mario Urso reported that the school is in a very good financial position and projects a
surplus at the end of the year.

VII.  Approval: 2021-2022 Annual Budget
Alison Tyler presented the proposed budget for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. She explained the
school’s allocation of stimulus funds under the federal Coronavirus Response and Relief
Supplemental Appropriations and American Rescue Plan Acts including requirements for funds
to be used to address learning loss. Alison also explained the enrollment projections and
updated estimates of expenses. Overall, the proposed budget has a surplus at the end of the
year.

A motion was made and seconded to approve the 2021-2022 budget. MOTION CARRIED

e Motion: Mario Urso
e Second: Michele Lawrence



e Aye: All
e Nay: None

VIII. Governance Committee
Louise reported that at the committee’s last meeting, they discussed how to prioritize the
responsibilities listed in the statement of purpose. The committee reorganized the list of
responsibilities into 3 focus areas, and assigned them to committee members.

IX.  Academic Committee
Erika Dooley reported that at the last committee meeting, school staff provided overviews of
the major assessments used, IRLA and NWEA. One challenge has been that there were no state
assessments in the school’s first year, and this year the state assessment data is limited. The
committee discussed the best ways to report the data back to the Board, how this data will be
used to evaluate the school during its charter renewal process, and what goals the school has
set for itself. The committee also discussed a long-term goal to measure the impact of AHS on
students’ academic growth.

X. Executive Session
The Board moved into executive session at 6:57 PM to discuss proposed, pending or current
litigation.

Xl.  Adjournment
Hearing no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:10 P.M.

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Board of Trustees
Meeting Minutes
June 28, 2021, 5:30 PM
Meeting held at 1001 Lake Ave., Rochester, NY 14613

Public Notice: notice provided at https://ahscharter.org/about/board-of-trustees/

Attendance
Board members present: Warren Hern, Kevin Overton, Erika Dooley, Robert Hoggard
Board members absent: Mario Urso (excused), Michele Lawrence (excused), Louise Vella (excused),

Kevin Railey (excused), Wendy Ferrer (excused), Bradley Turner (excused)
Staff present: Wanda Perez-Brundage
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VL.

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 5:35 PM. As a quorum was not met, the meeting was held as
an opportunity to hear reports only, with no action taken by the Board.

Principal’s Report

Current focus: Wanda Perez-Brundage described end-of-year events, including a virtual family
celebration. She discussed the results of the end-of-year staff survey, identifying strengths and
areas for growth. She explained the online summer program, and stated that most students are
signed up to participate.

Preparation for 2021-22 school year: Wanda explained preparations for the new school year,

with a focus on routines and traditions. She stated that the staff is fully hired, with the
possibility of filling one more position. She outlined ongoing student recruitment efforts. The
state Department of Health has not yet released new COVID guidance for schools for the 2021-
22 school year, so final decisions have not yet been made.

School goals: Wanda summarized attendance and academic achievement data. The school met
its individual reading level goal, but did not meet goals on the NWEA Math and Reading tests.
She described plans to help students understand the purpose of the assessments, set their own
goals, and improve their stamina on assessments. Wanda also described interventions to
address students who are below grade level, including grade-level retention and targeted small-
group support from an Academic Support Teacher next year.

Academic Committee

Erika Dooley reported on the committee’s recent meeting, at which the group discussed
professional development for teachers next year. Wanda also noted that the academic
leadership team will have a new structure and focus for weekly meetings next year.

Infrastructure Committee
Kevin Overton reported that the school continues to work with a developer to pursue a
potential site, while also continuing to seek other options.

Finance Committee

Warren Hern reported that the school maintains a strong financial position. The school has a
good cash position with no concerns about cash flow at this point. Expenses continue to run
generally under budget. The committee has no concerns.

Adjournment
Hearing no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:35 P.M.
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Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Statement of Financial Position
as of June 30

2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 957,567 S 329,187
Grants and contracts receivable 134,965 224,887
Accounts receivables - -
Prepaid Expenses 37,338 48,041
Contributions and other receivables - -
Other current assets - -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,129,870 602,115
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Building and Equipment, net S 171,860 S 61,851
Restricted Cash 50,000 25,000
Security Deposits 14,513 14,513
Other Non-Current Assets - -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 236,373 101,364
TOTAL ASSETS 1,366,243 703,479
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses S 76,502 S 14,070
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 166,625 87,678
Current Portion of Loan Payable - 81,028
Due to Related Parties - -
Refundable Advances - -
Deferred Revenue - 32,620
Other Current Liabilities - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 243,127 215,396

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year S - S 101,284
Deferred Rent - -
Due to Related Party - -
Other Long-Term Liabilities - -

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - 101,284
TOTAL LIABILITIES 243,127 316,680
NET ASSETS

Unrestricted S 1,123,116 S 386,799

Temporarily restricted - -
Permanently restricted - -

TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,123,116 386,799

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,366,243 703,479




Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
Statement of Activities
as of June 30

2021 2020
Unrestricted Temporarily Total Total
Restricted

OPERATING REVENUE

State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 2,888,895 $ 2,888,895 S 1,413,723

State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED - - -

State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue - - -

Federal Grants - - -

State and City Grants 387,409 387,409 656,007

Other Operating Income 233,445 233,445 141,729

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program = = =
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 3,509,749 3,509,749 2,211,459
EXPENSES

Program Services

Regular Education S 1,387,652 S - 1,387,652 S 932,190

Special Education 296,798 - 296,798 139,626

Other Programs 88,657 - 88,657 79,471

Total Program Services 1,773,107 1,773,107 1,151,287

Management and general 1,000,325 - 1,000,325 673,373
Fundraising - - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,773,432 - 2,773,432 1,824,660
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 736,317 - 736,317 386,799
SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

Interest and Other Income S - S - - S =

Contributions and Grants - - - -

Fundraising Support - - - -

Investments - - - -

Donated Services - - - -

Other Support and Revenue - - - -
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE - - - -
Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal of Assets S - S - - S -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 736,317 - 736,317 386,799
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR S 386,799 $ - 386,799 S -
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - - - -
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S 1,123,116 $ - 1,123,116 S 386,799




Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

Statement of Cash Flows

as of June 30

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets S 736,317 386,799
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 51,100 17,199
Grants Receivable 89,922 (224,887)
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses 10,703 (48,041)
Accounts Payable 62,432 14,070
Accrued Expenses 78,947 87,678
Accrued Liabilities - -
Contributions and fund-raising activities - -
Miscellaneous sources - -
Deferred Revenue (32,620) 32,620
Interest payments - -
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness (182,312) -
Other - -
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES S 814,489 265,438
CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES S
Purchase of equipment (161,109) (79,050)
Other - (14,513)
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES S (161,109) (93,563)
CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES S
Principal payments on long-term debt - (200,000)
Other - 382,312
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES S - 182,312
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S 653,380 354,187
Cash at beginning of year 354,187 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR S 1,007,567 354,187
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ACADEMY OF HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL

REPORT TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

JUNE 30, 2021




October 19, 2021

Finance Committee
Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 2021. Professional standards require that
we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 1, 2021, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve
you or management of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we
considered the internal control of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.



Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. Safeguards in place to eliminate or reduce threats to independence to an
acceptable level include a skilled, knowledgeable and experienced Director of Operations and outsourced
accountant who review the draft financial statements prior to issuance and accept responsibility for them.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by Academy of Health Sciences Charter School is included in Note A to the financial
statements. There have been no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during fiscal year
2021. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you
about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses
to program expenses, management and general expenses, and fundraising expenses and the collectability of grants
receivable. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they
are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Academy of Health Sciences
Charter School’s financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of
the financial statements.



Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We are pleased to report we encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the
performance of the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. No such misstatements were identified during our audit.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be
significant to Academy of Health Sciences Charter School’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management
representation letter.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters.
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding
auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with Academy of Health Sciences Charter School, we
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Academy of Health Sciences
Charter School’s auditors.



Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and the
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Internal Control Matters

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we considered to be material weaknesses.

Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Kevin Kopp will be happy to
meet with you at your convenience.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and
management of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School, which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities and changes
in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Academy of Health Sciences Charter School’s June 30, 2020 financial statements, and
we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 21, 2020.
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of June 30, 2020 and for the period from
November 6,2018 (date of inception) to June 30, 2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 19, 2021 on our
consideration of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Academy of Health Sciences Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Rochester, New York
October 19, 2021















ACADEMY OF HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Charter School

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School (the “Charter School”) is an independent public school established
under the provisions of the New York State Charter School Act of 1998, enacted as Article 56 of the Education
Law. The Charter School was chartered by the Board of Regents of the New York State Education Department
(NYSED) in 2018 and its current charter is valid through June 30, 2024 and renewable upon expiration.

It is the Charter School’s mission to provide students in Rochester, New York with a safe, supportive, and
intellectually engaging educational environment. The central philosophy of the Charter School is that strong
student-teacher-parent relationships are essential to student motivation and achievement. The Charter School’s
health science focus means that its students learn reading, writing, math, social studies, science and the arts
through the lens of Health Sciences preparing the students to choose the best college and career path for them.
Health Sciences is about life, service, science and innovating to help others thrive. The 2019-20 school year
represents the Charter School’s first year of operation. The Charter School is approved to provide educational
instruction to students in the fifth through eighth grades.

Financial Statement presentation

The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Charter
School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

These classes of net assets are defined as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — The net assets over which the Governing Board has discretionary
control to use in carrying on the Charter School’s operations in accordance with the guidelines established by
the Charter School. The Board may designate portions of the current net assets without donor restrictions for
specific purposes, projects or investment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the
resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. The Charter School had no net assets with donor restrictions
at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Revenue and support recognition
Revenue from Exchange Transactions: The Charter School recognizes revenue in accordance with Financial

Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, as amended. ASU 2014-09 applies to exchange transactions with customers that are bound by
contracts or similar arrangements and establishes a performance obligation approach to revenue recognition. The
Charter School’s state and local per pupil operating revenue qualifies as exchange transactions and the revenues
are recognized over time.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Board of Trustees
Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School as of June 30, 2021 and
have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 2021, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The Schedule of Activities hereinafter is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements for the year ended June
30, 2021.

We have also audited the financial statements of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School as of June 30, 2020
and for the period from November 6, 2018 (date of inception) to June 30, 2020, and our report thereon dated October
21, 2020, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose
of forming an opinion on the 2020 financial statements as a whole. The 2020 Schedule of Activities hereinafter is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 2020 financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2020 financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the 2020 financial statements or to the 2020 financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our report as of the same
date, on the 2020 supplemental financial information stated that, in our opinion, such information was fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the financial statements for the period November 6, 2018 (date of inception) to
June 30, 2020.

Rochester, New York
October 19, 2021
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ACADEMY OF HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL

REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School, which comprise
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and the related statements of activities and changes in net
assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Academy of Health Sciences Charter
School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Academy of Health Sciences Charter
School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

-22 -



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Academy of Health Sciences Charter School’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Rochester, New York
October 19, 2021
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New York State Education Department

Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the Board

of Regents

2021-2022 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

-

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE

Enter information into the GRAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance
on that particular item

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate
additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enroliment would
reference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B58AD1C-FFDB-47AF-A76C-E366791A1576

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:
Erika Dooley

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Trustee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0B58AD1C-FFDB-47AF-A76C-E366791A1576

6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None




Docu ign Envelope | -

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
/27/2021
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 016A0AE3-D88C-4AA0-9870-1FF336A0C7ES

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

wendy Ferrer

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Trustee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?



DocuSign Envelope ID: 016A0AE3-D88C-4AA0-9870-1FF336A0C7ES

6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None




Docu ign Envelope | -

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
/27/2021
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 67A73C2A-2E18-4E4C-B545-4E839EA09057

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name. warren Hern

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

President

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?



DocuSign Envelope ID: 67A73C2A-2E18-4E4C-B545-4E839EA09057

6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None




Docu ign Envelope | -

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
/26/2021
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 35B144B6-FOF4-49E3-8688-962198542E77

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Robert Hoggard

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Trustee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?



DocuSign Envelope ID: 35B144B6-FOF4-49E3-8688-962198542E77

6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None




Docu ign Envelope | -

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
/27/2021
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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Academy of Health Sciences Charter School
2020-2021 Annual Report
Entry 4C: Additional Financial Documents

. Advisory and/or Management letter: Enclosed.
. Federal Single Audit: A federal Single Audit was not required because the school

did not expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 threshold.

. CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report: Enclosed.

Evidence of Required Escrow Account: Enclosed.

. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter

Recommendations: Not applicable as there were no findings of internal
deficiencies considered material weaknesses.



ACADEMY OF HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL

REPORT TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

JUNE 30, 2021




October 19, 2021

Finance Committee
Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 2021. Professional standards require that
we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 1, 2021, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve
you or management of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we
considered the internal control of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.



Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. Safeguards in place to eliminate or reduce threats to independence to an
acceptable level include a skilled, knowledgeable and experienced Director of Operations and outsourced
accountant who review the draft financial statements prior to issuance and accept responsibility for them.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by Academy of Health Sciences Charter School is included in Note A to the financial
statements. There have been no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during fiscal year
2021. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you
about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses
to program expenses, management and general expenses, and fundraising expenses and the collectability of grants
receivable. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they
are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Academy of Health Sciences
Charter School’s financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of
the financial statements.



Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We are pleased to report we encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the
performance of the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. No such misstatements were identified during our audit.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be
significant to Academy of Health Sciences Charter School’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management
representation letter.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters.
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding
auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with Academy of Health Sciences Charter School, we
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Academy of Health Sciences
Charter School’s auditors.



Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and the
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Internal Control Matters

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we considered to be material weaknesses.

Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Kevin Kopp will be happy to
meet with you at your convenience.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and
management of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP



ACADEMY OF HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL

AGREED UPON PROCEDURES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021




INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON CSP FUNDING

To the Board of Trustees of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the management of Academy of
Health Sciences Charter School (the “Charter School”) and the New York State Education Department (“NYSED”)
solely to assist the specified parties in evaluating the Charter School’s assertion to NYSED that it has maintained
compliance with the requirements of the CSP grant and Federal and NYSED guidelines in managing the CSP grant.
The Charter School’s management is responsible for these procedures.

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of evaluating the Charter School’s assertion to NYSED that it has
maintained compliance with the requirements of the CSP grant and Federal and NYSED guidelines in managing the
CSP grant. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the
items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:
Procedure No. 1: We will obtain the detail of expenditures incurred for the period under review relating to the CSP

grant from the Charter School’s accounting software and reconcile to the grant revenue recorded by the Charter
School. If the CSP grant revenue does not equal the grant expenditures, we will investigate the differences.

Result

We obtained the detail of expenditures incurred for the period under review relating to the CSP grant from
the Charter School’s accounting software. We observed that the CSP revenue reported was $860 more than
the CSP grant expenditures. The final FS-10F that was filed exceeded total CSP grant expenditures by $860.

Procedure No. 2: We will obtain the NYSED approved CSP grant award information, including the budget and any
amendments, to determine if the revenue and expenditures recorded for the period appear reasonable.

Result
We observed the Charter School’s approved FS-10 and FS-10A and it appears that revenue and expenditures
in the period are reasonable.



Procedure No. 3: We will select a sample of expenditures from the detail obtained in Procedure No. 1.

a.

Payroll — We will select 10 items or 10% of the total number of payroll items charged to the grant, whichever
is less.

Other expenses — We will select 10 items or 10% of the total number of other expense items charged to the
grant, whichever is less.

Using the above selected items, we will:

i.  Determine if the expenditure is in accordance with the purpose of the grant and that pre-opening
expenditures are charged to pre-opening periods.

ii.  Determine if the expenditure falls into an approved budget category.
iii.  Determine if the expenditure was charged to the appropriate fiscal period.

Result

We selected a sample of seven other expenses and no payroll expenses as there were no payroll expenses
incurred and charged to the CSP grant during the 2020-21 school year. Based on our testing, we noted the
other expenditures fall into the appropriate budget category and were charged to the appropriate fiscal period.
For all selections, we noted other expenditures were in accordance with the purpose of the grant.

Procedure No. 4: We will obtain FS-25 form(s) submitted to NYSED during the year under review and perform the

following:

a.

Trace expenditures selected in Procedure No. 3 to requests for reimbursement. Determine that items
requested for reimbursement had previously been expended or were expended within a month following the
request for reimbursement. If items have not yet been requested for reimbursement, inquire of responsible
charter school officials as to the plan for requesting reimbursement, and determine if a receivable is recorded,
if appropriate.

If FS-25 forms included amounts on Line 4 (Cash Expenditures Anticipated During Next Month), we will
select one FS-25 and determine if funds were expended within one month following the date of the request.

Result

We obtained the Charter School’s FS-25°s and noted the selected items were appropriately included in the
request for reimbursement. The requests for reimbursement appear to be in the appropriate period. The
Charter School had one FS-25 during the period which did not have a balance on Line 4 (Cash Expenditures
Anticipated During Next Month).



Procedure No. 5: For schools with a weighted lottery during the period under review we will:

a. Obtain documentation the school received permission from the NYSED Charter School Office for
the weighted lottery.

b. Obtain the results of the weighted lottery.

e Note weighted lotteries must be conducted using the NYSED Weighted Lottery Generator
(WLGQG). When the WLG is used, a copy of the “lottery PDF” should be observed. (This PDF is
generated after the WLG has conducted the lottery.)

Result
The Charter School did not hold a weighted lottery during the period under review.

We were engaged by Academy of Health Sciences Charter School to performed this agreed-upon procedures
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the
objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, on these procedures. Accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come
to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon-procedures
engagement.

This report is intended solely for the use of Academy of Health Sciences Charter School and the New York State
Education Department, and it is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified
parties.

Rochester, New York
October 14, 2021
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DC01BB7F-0D5C-4D71-8361-E6454E436A0A

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Michele Lawrence

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Vice cChair

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?



DocuSign Envelope ID: DC01BB7F-0D5C-4D71-8361-E6454E436A0A

6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None




Docu ign Envelope | -

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
6/8/202
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: AF67B5D6-3DD5-4A68-A36E-F8BE367C3BAE

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Kevin Overton

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Trustee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?



DocuSign Envelope ID: AF67B5D6-3DD5-4A68-A36E-F8BE367C3BAE

6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
5/27/202
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 9CB4D8DE-FEC7-4854-A933-522C7F3914E6

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Kevin Railey

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Secretary

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9CB4D8DE-FEC7-4854-A933-522C7F3914E6

6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None




Docu ign Envelope | -

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
/27/2021
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 7F140C27-B49B-4386-89A7-35DE5C569664

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member — Board of Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

Name:
Joseph Searles

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Trustee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7F140C27-B49B-4386-89A7-35DE5C569664

4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s)

Nature of
financial
interest/transacti
on

Steps taken to
avoid a conflict
of interest,
(e.g., did not
vote, did not
participate in
discussion)

Name of person
holding interest or
engaging in
transaction and
relationship to
you

None

None

None

None

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”
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Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steps
the school(s) d business household holding an P
. . taken to
conducted interest in the .
. L. avoid
organization .
. . conflict of
conducting business interest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
None None None None None
2/3/202
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 2A7AC954-4CE1-40B0-B591-E15CD0032AF5

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Bradley Turner

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Trustee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?
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6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None
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8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
/29/2021
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 35EAB1BC-C187-4F10-AF6E-07F6F32090E9

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Mario Urso

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Treasurer

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?
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6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None




Docu ign Envelope | -

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
5/27/202
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Louise Vella

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Academy of Health Sciences Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Trustee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No
4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any
student currently enrolled in the school?

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school?
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6.

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person
could benefit from your participation.

No

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMQO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
None




Docu ign Envelope | -

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducted the family member of Stebs
the school(s) business household holding an P
. - taken to
conducted interest in the -
- avoid
organization .
. - conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
/27/2021
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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712812021 Facilities Planning - Inspection View - 61847

General Information and Fire/Life Safety History

Inspection Date:

7127121
1. Primary Use:

INSTRUCTIONAL
2. Fire Sprinkler System?

No
2a. Sprinkler alarm?

No
3. Fire Hydrant System?

Yes
3a. Hydrant Ownership:

Public owned
4. Building Ownership:

Leased

4a. Owner Name:
Education Success Foundation
4a. Owner Address:
4 Lake View Park
4a. Owner Address2:
Rochester, NY 14613
4a. Owner Phone #:

|
4a. Owner E-Mail address: |

5. Leased To Others?:

NO
6. Square footage:

47434
8a. Fire drill manuals distributed?

Ye<g

8d. Average evacuation time:

3 minutes 38 seconds

https://eservices.nysed.gov/facilities/inspection/view/61847 1/4
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